
QA-374 
Milton Stant House 
Church Hill vicinity 
Private 

circa 1872-80 

According to local tradition, this small brick 
house was constructed in the post-Civil War oeriod by 
James Brown, a deaf black Man, using bricks made by 
him on the site. 

A search of the historical records substantiates 
this tradition. The land was purchased by Brown's 
mother, Matilda Brown, in two separate parcels from 
white landowners in 1872 and 1876. In 1911, Lena 
(Brown) Price sold the oroperty to Frances Usilton for 
$600. This deed notes that the lot is the same 
"whereon Ja'.tles Brown, the old deaf colored .n'an lived for 
so long and recently died". 

This house is one of the earliest surviving buildings 
in the county that can be positively tied to a black owner. 
It also is a rare example of a surviving early house built 
by a black rather than a white contractor, and with 
homemade bricks. 
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side of Flat Iron S0u?re Ro?ci just eact of the 

inter~cction ~ith Lieby Road, ?~nroxisatcly one 

~ile e2st of St2rkey Corner. 

The housP w~s construct~d in three APn?r?tP 

stages. The origin?l house w?s of brick construction, 

1 l/? stories high, threP b2ys widP and one roe~ 

deep. Accor<ling to local tradition, this section 

of the house ~as constructed hy J=~es Brown, a 

black ~an who ~ade his own bricks in the field to 

the e?st of the house. The gPneral char?cter of 

the brickwork ?nd the reused 2nd generally crude 

fra~ing visible in the cell2r see~ to reinforce 

this tradition. Later additions inclufe = two 

story fr~me wing to the re~r and an added second 

story to the ~ain section. 

The front f2c?de of the origjn2l house f~ces 

south to the road. The door is in the center b?y, 

fl?nked by single windows on each side. These 

nrobably were originally 6/6 sash, but ?rP now 

fitted with modern 2/2 s2sh. TterP is a large 

in the P?St bay. The latter onening ?nd ?11 thrPP 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 



Ill SIGNIFICANCE 

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW 

_PREHfSTORIC .-JRCHEULuGY-PREHISTORIC _COMMUNITY PLANNING _LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE _REUG!CN 

i400-1499 .-JRCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC _CONSERVATION -LAW _SCIENCt 

__ 1500-1599 .-JGRICULTURE -ECONOMICS _L!TERATURE __ SCULPTURE 

__ 1600-1699 KARCHITECTURE -EDUCATION _MILITARY -SOCIAUHUMANITARIM< 

_1700-1799 .-JAT _ENGINEERING _MUSIC _THEATER 

_x1800-1899 _COMMERCE _EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT _PHILOSOPHY _TRANSPORTATION 

_251900 -COMMUNICATIONS __ INDUSTRY _POLITICS,GOVERNMENT _OTHER iSPECIFYJ 

_INVENTION 

SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ ARCHITECT 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to local tr?.dition, this s~all brick 

hou~P W7S constructed in the nest-Civil ~ar nPriod 

by James Brown, ~ deaf black man, using bricks made 

by him on the site. 

rl search of the historical records subst?nti~tes 

this tr;:idition. ThP 12nd w2s purchased by Brown's 

~other, Matilda Brown, in two se~ar~te n?rcels fro~ 

white landowners in 1972 and 1876. In 1911, Lena 

(Brown) Price sold the oronerty to Frances Usilton 

for $600. Thi8 deEd notes th2t the lot is the same 

'whereon Ja~es Brown, the old deaf colored man 

lived for so long and recently died'. 

This house is one of the earliest surviving 

buildings in the county that can be nositively 

tied to a bl2ck owner. It also is ? rare exa~nle 

of a surviving early house built by a black rather 

than by a white contractor, and with homemade 

bricks. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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CONTINUATION SHEET 

7.1 DESCRIPTION 

QA-374 

first floor openings have spl?yed jack arch lintPls. 

A transom window over the door has been blocked with 

plywood. The brickwork is laid in random bond with 

unusually wide joints and is coated with whitewash. 

In general, the masonry work is relatively crude and 

amateurish, reinforcing the tr2dition that Brown built 

it himself. 

Two features of the front facade are of particular 

interest. The front door is framed with paneled soffit 

and jambs with GrPek ogee/astragal panel molds and a 

large moldPd piece forming the bar between the two-light 

transom and the door opening. Also of interest are 

a series of decorative details in the jack arches OVPr 

all of the fir.st floor window openings. These consist 

of a projecting .spheric~! "dish" similar to ;i bearing 

plate for a tie rod flankPd by smaller bolt-si7ed 

proj8ctions. These nay serve some structural purpose 

but appear to be primarily decorative. 

On the P.>.st grible wrill, thPre is a bulkhead cellar 

entrance in the north hay rind a 2/2 window in thP south 

hay, with a small cellar window to left of center. 

A modern furnace chimney has been added in the center 

of this wall, probably replacing an original flush 

brick chimney. 



CONTINUATION SHEET 

7.2 DESCRIPTION 

QA-374 

The north or rear facade is completely covered 

by later additions. 

There are two 2/2 windows on the first floor of 

the west gable wall, with a modern stove chimney in 

the center. 

The added second story is frame, covered with wood 

shingles and a standing seam metal roof. The fenestration 

repeats the original first floor pattern in most details. 

The rear addition prcjects from the west end of 

the north facade. It is of frame construction, two 

stories high and one room deep. The exterior is 

covered with wood shingle siding and 0 standing seam 

metal roof. On the west wall, there is a 6/6 window 

in the center on the first floor and a 3/3 window on 

the second floor. On the north gable wall, the only 

opening is a 6/6 window in the east bay of the first 

floor. An exterior brick stove chimney ri~es in the 

center of this wall. The first story of the east 

wall is concealed by a lean-to addition. A six-light 

window is centered on the second story of this facade. 

The interior of the main house originally consisted 

of a hall-parlor plan, with the sm~ller parlor to the 

west and the hall to the east. The hrick wall that 

divided these rooms was renoved by the presPnt owners. 



CONTINUATION SHEET 

7.3 DESCRIPTION 

QA-374 

An enclosed winder stair in the northeast corner of 

the hall was also removed and replaced with a modern 

open stair. Surviving early detail includes the 

paneled soffit and jambs on the front door, similar 

decoration on the original north door, now opening 

into the rear wing, and beaded baseboard on the south 

wall of the hall. An original 6/6 window also remains 

in place on the north wall of the hall. 

The cellar was originally divided into two rooms 

by a brick partition wall that has been partially 

removed, leaving a nine-inch seam in the floor above. 

The joists are very rough and irregular. Much of the 

framing material is reused hand hewn timber mixed 

in with later circular sawn pieces. 

A small brick chimney base is centered on the 

west g?.ble wall; evidence survives of a larger chimney 

base and hearth centered on the east gable wall. 

A piece of a paneled door jamb has been reused next to 

the bulkhead door. 
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CONTINUATION SHEET 

8.1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The 16 by 24 foot story-and-a-half form and 

hall-parlor plan are trnditional for small dwellings 

in this region. The decorative woodwork, in particular 

the Greek RPvival paneled soffits and j?mbs on several 

openings, ?re also traditional and were presum2bly 

salvaged from an earlier building. The most unusual 

feature is the use of bolts and bearing plates in the 

splayed window jack ?rches. These have no apparent 

f'1nction and are nssumed to be decorative. 



SS 10, folio 225. 

Milton Stant House 

Starkey Corner 

Title Search 

July 25, 1911. 

QA-374 

Lena Price of New Castle Co., Delaware, temporarily 

residing in Queen Anne's Co. and John W. Price, her husband ••• 

for $600 to Frances Usilton of Queen Anne's Co •••• all 

that lot ••• on the left side of the public road running 

from Starkey's Corner to Price's Station adjoining the 

lands of Israel Woodring and across the road froM the 

farm of Mary E. Cole ••• containing 5 1/2 acres of land •.• 

The land hereby granted and conveyed is known as 

the James Brown Lot and the Matilda Brown lot and is the 

same land whereon James Brown, the old deaf colored ~an, 

lived so long and recently died, and is also the same 

land devised by Matilda Brown, by her last will and 

testament duly recorded in Liber WAJ No. 1, folio 153, 

a will record book, ••• unto her son JaMes Brown, for 

his lifetime and at his death to Lena Brown, who is now 

the said Lena Price, the granter of this deed, the same 

James Brown having departed this life in the lifetime of 

the said Lena Brown or Lena Price. 

The land hereby granted and conveyed was granted and 

conveyed unto the said Matilda Brown by two deeds, each 

deed conveying a separate parcel of land, one deed being 

from Charles N. Anthony, datFd Jan. 25, 1876, recordea in 

JW 6/19, the other deed bein~ fro~ R.E.C. Downes and wife 

dated Jan. 6, 1872, recorded in JW 8/225 ••• 







QA-374 Milton Stant House 
Flat Iron Road 
Orlando Ridout V 1981 
Front facade from Southeast 





QA-374 Milton Stant House 
Flat Iron Road 
Orlando Ridout V 1981 
View from West 


